
 
Doc. #22-66 

Page 1 of 3 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
STLS BOARD MEETING 
Tuesday, June 21, 2022 - 2:00 pm 
Dormann Library, Bath, NY 14810  
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Agenda                                                                                                                                                                         Doc. #22-66 
2.  Approval of Minutes – May 2022                                          *FOR APPROVAL                                      Doc. #22-67 
3. Treasurer’s Report – May 2022                                           *FOR APPROVAL                                      Doc. #22-68 
4.  Financial Clerk’s Report – May 2022                                          *FOR APPROVAL                                      Doc. #22-69 
 
• Subject to corrections, above items may be approved without motion. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS   
 
5. Executive Committee – Richard Ahola                      
6. Personnel & Policies Committee – Denise King                                     (Minutes) Doc. #22-70                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
7. Finance & Facilities Committee – Betsy Gorman                                                                  (Minutes) Doc. #22-71 
                                                                                                                                                 (State Comptroller’s Report) Doc. #22-72 
8. Public Relations Committee – Lynnette Decker                                                                                 
9.  Foundation for Southern Tier Libraries – Louise Richardson                      (Minutes) Doc. #22-73 
 
BOARD ACTIONS 

 
10. Expenditure Approvals -Monthly Unpaid Bills Detail                       * FOR APPROVAL                                   Doc. #22-74 
 
 
Finance & Facilities Committee Recommendation:  Approve expenditures of the Unpaid Bills Detail for the most recent 
month as authorized by the Financial Clerk, Internal Auditor and Treasurer per the Authority of Board Policy.  
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________               Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
 
11. Receipt Approvals – Monthly Deposit Summary                             * FOR APPROVAL                                     Doc. #22-75 
                                                                                
 
Finance & Facilities Committee Recommendation:  Approve receipts of the Deposit Summary for the most recent month 
as authorized by the Financial Clerk per the Finance Policy. 
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________     Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
 
 
 



 
Doc. #22-66 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
12.  Approve Revisions to the Bylaws         
                                              
                                                                                  *FOR APPROVAL                                                                                    Doc. #22-76 
 

Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation:  The STLS Board of Trustees approves the revisions to the 
Bylaws as presented at the May 17, 2022 board meeting considering any agreed upon revisions. 
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________     Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
 
13. Appointment of Part Time 19-Hour Per Week Delivery Driver        * FOR APPROVAL  
 
Executive Director Recommendation: The STLS Board of Trustees approves the permanent appointment of Gregg Moyer 
to the Part Time 19-Hour per Week Delivery Driver position at a starting hourly rate of $15.30.  
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________     Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
14. Appointment of Part Time 19-Hour Per Week Delivery Driver        * FOR APPROVAL  
 
Executive Director Recommendation: The STLS Board of Trustees approves the probationary appointment of Jeff Weaver 
to the Part Time 19-Hour per Week Delivery Driver position at a starting hourly rate of $15.00. Permanent position 
appointment is defined and determined by the Staff Organization Contract 2021 – 2024. 
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________     Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
 
15.  Appointment of Part Time 9-Hour Per Week Delivery Driver        * FOR APPROVAL  
 
Executive Director Recommendation: The STLS Board of Trustees approves the probationary appointment of Kim 
Falkenberg to the Part Time 9-Hour per Week Delivery Driver position at a starting hourly rate of $15.00. Permanent 
position appointment is defined and determined by the Staff Organization Contract 2021 – 2024. 
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________     Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Doc. #22-66 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
16.  Approve the Payment to Synergy IT Solutions                 * FOR APPROVAL                                                  Doc. #21-77  
 
Executive Director Recommendation: The STLS Board of Trustees approves the payment to Synergy IT Solutions for 
installation of external WiFi access points at 48 member libraries per the STLS Purchasing Policy in the amount of 
$98,635. 
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________     Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
17. Approve Participation in Cooperative Energy Supply Bid        * FOR APPROVAL                                           Doc. #21-78  
 
Executive Director Recommendation: The STLS Board of Trustees approves the organization’s participation in the 
Cooperative Energy Supply Bid coordinated by BOCES of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates counties for fiscal year 2023.   
 

Move:   ______________________     Second ____________________ 
Aye __________    Nay _________     Abstain ___________  Absent __________ 
Approved/Failed 
Discussion: 

 
BOARD INFORMATION 
 
18. Old Business  
19. New Business – Open Meetings Law 
20.  Library Networking 
21. President’s Report       
22. Monthly System Team & Divisional Reports                                                                                                         Doc. #22-79                                                                                        
 
Public Expression (15 minutes) 
Adjournment  
Next meeting: Dormann Library – Tuesday, July 19, 2022 at 2 p.m.  



 

 

Doc. #22-67 

 

STLS BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, May 17, 2022 - 2:00 pm 

GoToMeeting Conference Call Platform  

MINUTES 

TRUSTEES PRESENT:                                                                                                   

Richard Ahola – 2022 Kim Salisbury – 2022 

Pat Finnerty -2022 Felicity Wright – 2023 

Betsy Gorman – 2024  

Kathy Green-2021  

David Haggstrom – 2021  

Barbara Hubbell – 2024  
Denise King – 2024  

Susan McGill – 2024  

Louise Richardson - 2024  

 

Excused  Sisi Barr – 2023, Lynnette Decker -2021, Vacant Allegany County Seat – 
2025, Vacant Steuben County Seat – 2025  
 
Staff Present – Brian Hildreth, Executive Director, Melissa Morrissey, Administrative 

Assistant 

Vice President K Green called the meeting to order at 2:04  pm. 

 

1. AGENDA REVIEW                                       *FOR APPROVAL                 Doc.#22-52  

Approved 

 
2.  Approval of Minutes – April  2022            *FOR APPROVAL             Doc. #22-53  
Approved 
 
 
3. Treasurer’s Report – April  2022        *FOR APPROVAL                   Doc. #22-54 
Approved 
B Gorman inquired if there were any questions about the April Treasurer’s report. There 
were no questions. B Gorman added that the cash balance is up 135,000.00 from last 
year at this time and includes funds earmarked for the renovation project, 
 
 
4. Financial Clerk’s Report – April 2022         *FOR APPROVAL        Doc. #22-55 
Approved 
B Hildreth reported that line item 4725 shows we have received funds from Appalachian 
Regional Commission for costs incurred as part of the project.  



 

 

Doc. #22-67 

 

B Hildreth noted that for expenses, line item 5490 totals about $112,000.00, which is for 
the building renovation project.  
B Hubbell inquired about line item 4725 and the 50% match. B Hildreth stated that if 
libraries make the purchase, STLS will reimburse 50% of that cost. If STLS makes the 
purchase, the libraries will be billed 50% of the purchase cost. 
 

Standing Committee Reports –  

5. Executive Committee – Kathy Green 

K Green reported for the Executive Committee since Richard Ahola was having audio 

issues. K Green reported that the committee met and created the agenda.  

 

6. Personnel & Policies Committee –   Denise King                  (Minutes) Doc.#22-56 

D King reported that there is “lots to vote on” in the upcoming resolution section of the 

meeting.  

(Policy- Bylaws) Doc.#22-57 

D King stated that the committee shared a draft of the Bylaws with the Board and asked 

that everyone review the draft this month. If there are any suggestions or changes, 

please send to Brian. D King thanked all of the committee members for their work on 

the Bylaws.  

 

 ** Move to go into Executive Session to discuss the employment status of staff 
member position. Motion by D King and second by P Finnerty. Executive session 
started at 2:13 pm. Executive session ended at 2:20 pm. ** 
 

D King asked Brian to explain the addition of the Building Custodian job position. B 

Hildreth explained that we contract out for cleaning services at a cost of $7,000/year 

and we spend about $9,000/year on routine maintenance on the building . The position 

is proposed to pay $17,000/year. Since we are investing in the complete building 

renovation, having one person on site to anticipate and handle all of the building needs 

will pay off. The position is a staff association position. K Green, L Richardson, B 

Gorman, R Ahola all added they felt the position is a good addition. 

 

D King asked Brian to speak about his performance objectives.  

Objective 1 – The Building Renovation Project: B Hildreth stated we are in the midst of 

the renovation project with a projected end date of mid-July. The project is moving along 

successfully. 

Objective 2 – Determining ILS Cost Share: B Hildreth stated he has met with the DAC 

and all library boards about their cost share amounts and that this is the lowest cost 

share increase proposal in the last 20 years.  

Objective 3 – Facilitate STLS 2021 & 2022 Appalachian Grants:  B Hildreth stated that 

this has been very successful with STLS taking in $150,000.00 which covers all 

purchasing for Chemung, Schuyler and Yates counties.  



 

 

Doc. #22-67 

 

Objective 4 – the USDA Rural Development Grant: B Hildreth stated that all grant 

money has been used for specified purchases. He is still working on the new delivery 

van purchase and the racks for the server room. Once those purchases are made, we 

will submit the closing paperwork and will be reimbursed roughly $180,000.00 from the 

USDA. 

 

7. Finance & Facilities Committee – Betsy Gorman                    (Minutes) Doc.#22-58 
L Richardson reported for B Gorman. L Richardson stated the committee had a short 
meeting because there were no reports to review, due to the Business Manager being 
on leave. The committee reviewed the Annual State Report and the Facilities update.  
 
8. Public Relations Committee – Lynnette Decker                   (Minutes) Doc.#22-59       
K Green reported that the committee did not meet this month.  
 
9. Foundation for Southern Tier Libraries – Louise Richardson  

(Minutes) Doc.#22-60 
L Richardson reported that the Foundation held their Annual Meeting with 

representatives from various libraries speaking about the projects they are able to 

complete with the money awarded from the Foundation. D King noted that the awards 

are listed in the Board Packet, as well as the amount and purpose. L Richardson added 

that all grant requests were funded with the exception of one, which was more of a 

capital project.  

L Richardson concluded with informing the Board that there will be two fundraisers this 

year, an online auction and a direct mail campaign.  

 

BOARD ACTIONS 

10. Expenditure Approvals -Monthly Unpaid Bills Detail                                                                                    
.                                                                                                * FOR APPROVAL     Doc. #22-61 
Finance & Facilities Committee Recommendation:  Approve expenditures of the Unpaid Bills 
Detail for the most recent month as authorized by the Financial Clerk, Internal Auditor and 
Treasurer per the Authority of Board Policy.  
 

Aye __11___Nay _____ Abstain ________  Absent __2_______ Vacant___2____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
 
11. Receipt Approvals – Monthly Deposit Summary       * FOR APPROVAL       Doc. #22-62                                                                                                        
Finance & Facilities Committee Recommendation:  Approve receipts of the Deposit Summary 
for the most recent month as authorized by the Financial Clerk per the Finance Policy. 
 

Aye __11___Nay _____ Abstain ________  Absent __2_______ Vacant___2____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 



 

 

Doc. #22-67 

 

 
12. Approve Revisions to the Finance Policy        (April 2022 Board Packet) Doc. #22-41 
                                                                                               *FOR APPROVAL                                   

Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation:  The STLS Board of Trustees 
approves the revisions to the Finance Policy as presented at the April 19, 2022 board 
meeting considering any agreed upon revisions. 
 

Aye __11___Nay _____ Abstain ________  Absent __2_______ Vacant___2____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
 
 
13. Approve Revisions to the Investment Policy        (April 2022 Board Packet) Doc. #22-42 
                                                                                              *FOR APPROVAL                                   

Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation:  The STLS Board of Trustees 
approves the revisions to the Investment Policy as presented at the April 19, 2022 
board meeting considering any agreed upon revisions. 
 

Aye __11___Nay _____ Abstain ________  Absent __2_______ Vacant___2____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
 
14. Approve Revisions to the Travel, Working Remotely & Conferences Policy         
                                                                                         (April 2022 Board Packet) Doc. #22-43 
                                                                                                         *FOR APPROVAL                                   

Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation:  The STLS Board of Trustees 
approves the revisions to the Travel, Working Remotely & Conferences Policy as 
presented at the April 19, 2022 board meeting considering any agreed upon revisions. 
 

Aye __11___Nay _____ Abstain ________  Absent __2_______ Vacant___2____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
 
15. Approve Revisions to the Disaster Preparedness Policy   
                                                                                         (April 2022 Board Packet) Doc. #22-44   
                                                                                                             *FOR APPROVAL                                   

Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation:  The STLS Board of Trustees 
approves the revisions to the Disaster Preparedness Policy as presented at the April 19, 
2022 board meeting considering any agreed upon revisions. 
 

Aye __11___Nay _____ Abstain ________  Absent __2_______ Vacant___2____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
16. Approve the 2021 Library System Annual Report to State Library - Education Department 



 

 

Doc. #22-67 

 

                                                                                          (April 2022 Board Packet) Doc. #22-46 
                                                                                                              *FOR APPROVAL           
Finance & Facilities Committee Recommendation: The STLS Board of Trustees approves the 
2021 Library System Annual Report to the State Library - Education Department as presented 
at the April 19, 2022 board meeting. 
 

Aye __11___Nay _____ Abstain ________  Absent __2_______ Vacant___2____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
17.Approve the Building Custodian Job Title and Description                                     Doc. #22-63 
                                                                                                       *FOR APPROVAL                                                                       
Executive Director Recommendation: The STLS Board of Trustees approves the proposed 
Building Custodian Job Title and Description, and authorizes the Executive Director to advertise 
the position. 
 

Move:   _B Hubbell______________             Second ____K Green_________ 
Aye __11_____    Nay _________ Abstain ___________  Absent _____2____ Vacant_2____ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 
18. Approve the proposed Organizational Chart                                                         Doc. #22-64 
                                                                                                          *FOR APPROVAL                                                                       
Executive Director Recommendation: The STLS Board of Trustees approves the proposed 
revisions to the Organizational Chart considering the addition of the Building Custodian position.  
 

Move:   _____B Hubbell_________     Second _K Green______________ 
Aye __11______    Nay ______  Abstain ________  Absent __2______ Vacant _____2___ 
Approved/Failed: Approved 
Discussion: None 

 

BOARD INFORMATION 

16. Old Business – 
None 
 
17. New Business –  
None 
 
18.  Library Networking –  
B Gorman stated that she has been in South Carolina for the past 6 weeks and was 
able to borrow a WIFI hotspot from the local library, and it worked great.  
R Ahola asked any Board members, who have not done so already, to go vote in the 
local elections for school board/budget and library funding. 
L Richardson stated that it is important to get to know the candidates running for school 
board and their platforms.  
D King stated she is working with the Family Reading Partnership and would like to 
promote Bookfest. It will be at Wisner Park in Elmira, on Sunday, May 22 from 10-2. B 
Hubbell added that the Dolly Parton Imagination Library will be at Bookfest, as well.  



 

 

Doc. #22-67 

 

 
19.  President’s Report –  
R Ahola stated that he hopes to have in person meetings soon.  
L Richardson suggested using the Corning Library, with the option of having a hybrid 
meeting for those who cannot attend in person. 
B Hildreth stated that Bath is a possible in person meeting space that he is looking into, 
now that more COVID restrictions have been lifted.  
 
20. Monthly System Team & Divisional Reports                                        Doc.#22-65                                    
B Hildreth stated that he hopes the Board was able to review the reports. He added that 
staff is preparing to get back in the building, and to put on events. B Hildreth also noted 
that there will be a Director’s Retreat in Hammondsport in June. The date is to be 
determined.  
 
 
Public Expression (15 minutes) 
None 
 
Adjournment  2 : 55  pm 
Move:    K Green                   Second: F Wright 
 
Next meeting: Southern Tier Library System and GoTo Meeting, Tuesday, June 21, 
2022 at 2 p.m.  
 
"Minutes written by Melissa Morrissey and reviewed by Louise Richardson, Board 
Secretary." 



 3:13 PM

 06/01/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Treasurer's Report

 As 3/31/22

May 31, 22 Apr 30, 22 $ Change

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1200 · Cash - Operating 12,781.29 3,623.38 9,157.91

1201 · Cash - Payroll 12,015.94 10,739.89 1,276.05

1202 · Cash - Money Market 1,481,976.28 1,993,253.76 -511,277.48

Total Checking/Savings 1,506,773.51 2,007,617.03 -500,843.52

Accounts Receivable

1380 · Accounts Receivable 148,315.11 161,829.02 -13,513.91

Total Accounts Receivable 148,315.11 161,829.02 -13,513.91

Other Current Assets

12000 · Undeposited Funds 347.33 0.00 347.33

Total Other Current Assets 347.33 0.00 347.33

Total Current Assets 1,655,435.95 2,169,446.05 -514,010.10

Fixed Assets

1100 · Fixed Assets

1102 · Building 1,099,684.02 1,099,684.02 0.00

1104 · Equipment 217,660.43 217,660.43 0.00

1105 · Internet Fiber 862,208.03 862,208.03 0.00

1106 · Vehicles 125,229.86 125,229.86 0.00

1112 · Accumulated Dep Building -656,629.29 -656,629.29 0.00

1114 · Accumulated Depreciation -973,666.19 -973,666.19 0.00

Total 1100 · Fixed Assets 674,486.86 674,486.86 0.00

Total Fixed Assets 674,486.86 674,486.86 0.00

Other Assets

1382 · Prepaid expenses 86,130.22 86,130.22 0.00

Total Other Assets 86,130.22 86,130.22 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 2,416,053.03 2,930,063.13 -514,010.10

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

2601 · Accrued P/R 4,657.95 4,657.95 0.00

2604 · Deferred Grant 328,777.89 328,777.89 0.00

2605 · Retained Earnings 30,623.35 13,607.02 17,016.33

2625 · Payroll Deductions Payable 1,699.86 1,681.57 18.29

2626 · Flex Spending Deduction Payable -819.79 -325.16 -494.63

2627 · PFL Payable to Insurance 4,148.90 3,802.21 346.69

2640 · Accrued Compensated Absences 134,275.67 134,275.67 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 503,363.83 486,477.15 16,886.68

Total Current Liabilities 503,363.83 486,477.15 16,886.68

Total Liabilities 503,363.83 486,477.15 16,886.68

Equity

3200 · Fund Balance Unrestricted 2,092,339.22 2,092,339.22 0.00

3910 · Board Restricted Capital Reserv 350,000.00 350,000.00 0.00

 Page 1 of 2

Doc. #22-68



 3:13 PM

 06/01/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Treasurer's Report

 As 3/31/22

May 31, 22 Apr 30, 22 $ Change

3911 · Donor Restricted Capital Reserv 97,806.44 97,806.44 0.00

Net Income -627,456.46 -96,559.68 -530,896.78

Total Equity 1,912,689.20 2,443,585.98 -530,896.78

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,416,053.03 2,930,063.13 -514,010.10

Official Depository: Community Bank NA

Money Market Account: .10 Rate of Return

Checking Accounts: .05 Rate of Return

 Page 2 of 2



 3:11 PM

 06/01/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Financial Clerk's Report

 May 2022

May 22 Apr 22 $ Change

Income

4719 · Interest 39.86 47.71 -7.85

4721 · E-Rate Funding 83,839.75 304.08 83,535.67

4723 · Member Library Cost Share 0.00 -1,160.00 1,160.00

4724 · Member Library  IT Contracts 130.22 12,636.01 -12,505.79

4725 · Grants Revenue 0.00 119,762.50 -119,762.50

4731 · Arkport Support 1,769.69 2,654.82 -885.13

4733 · Member Library Processing Fees 241.50 0.00 241.50

4735 · Non State Aid Pass Through 809.42 15,217.50 -14,408.08

4782 · Donations 5.21 0.00 5.21

4784 · General Reimbursements & Refund 721.53 168.00 553.53

Total Income 87,557.18 149,630.62 -62,073.44

Gross Profit 87,557.18 149,630.62 -62,073.44

Expense

5100 · Salaries

5141 · Professional Salaries 31,102.96 28,116.34 2,986.62

5142 · Non-Professional Salaries 41,661.16 41,191.36 469.80

Total 5100 · Salaries 72,764.12 69,307.70 3,456.42

5150 · Personnel Benefits

5153 · Social Security 5,309.80 5,027.70 282.10

5154 · Workers Compensation 906.06 649.50 256.56

5157 · Health Insurance 13,053.40 3,667.79 9,385.61

5158 · Payroll Expense - Other 732.66 708.88 23.78

Total 5150 · Personnel Benefits 20,001.92 10,053.87 9,948.05

5204 · STLS Software & Small Equipment 19.49 2,016.00 -1,996.51

5205 · Maintenance Contracts & Leases 392.57 0.00 392.57

5409 · STLS Telephone/Internet 105,887.82 15,923.46 89,964.36

5417 · Library Materials 26.99 345.05 -318.06

5418 · Consultant Collection 183.95 0.00 183.95

5420 · Staff Development Travel 0.00 140.00 -140.00

5424 · Conference Registration 0.00 950.00 -950.00

5425 · Staff & Member Library Mileage 277.29 0.00 277.29

5427 · Programming & Annual Conference 300.00 0.00 300.00

5430 · Office Supplies 255.48 548.55 -293.07

5433 · Postage 0.00 63.45 -63.45

5434 · Public Relations 3,766.84 9.99 3,756.85

5435 · Member Library Pass through 18,608.67 16,034.08 2,574.59

5442 · Professional Fees 1,517.00 150.00 1,367.00

5444 · Accounting Support & Audit 99.00 99.00 0.00

5450 · Utilities 831.94 1,106.92 -274.98

5451 · Building Maintenance & Repairs 848.53 848.53 0.00

5454 · Commercial Insurance 829.60 829.60 0.00

5471 · Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs 64.45 284.90 -220.45

5473 · Vehicle Fuel 2,026.08 2,268.35 -242.27

 Page 1 of 2

Doc. #22-69



 3:11 PM

 06/01/22

 Accrual Basis

 Southern Tier Library System

 Financial Clerk's Report

 May 2022

May 22 Apr 22 $ Change

5474 · Vehicle Insurance 437.58 437.58 0.00

5480 · Greenwood Reading Center Exp 1,512.23 1,213.61 298.62

5485 · Arkport Expense Account 1,433.69 1,393.52 40.17

5490 · Grants 386,368.72 112,479.80 273,888.92

Total Expense 618,453.96 236,503.96 381,950.00

Net Income -530,896.78 -86,873.34 -444,023.44

 Page 2 of 2



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Personnel & Policies Committee  

Committee Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 at 12:00 pm 

 

Meeting Location: Southern Tier Library System Headquarters 

Painted Post, New York hosted via GoToMeeting 

 

Committee Members in Attendance: Denise King (chair), Barbara Hubbell and Richard 

Ahola 

Administrative Staff: Brian M. Hildreth 

Policies 

Bylaws 

Committee members reviewed and discussed the Bylaws presented at the May 17, 2022 

board meeting. D. King said Trustee B. Gorman noticed needed changes to the Finance 

and Facilities Committee responsibilities. B. Hildreth confirmed the changes referred to 

the development of the library system budget. He said the recommended revisions had 

been incorporated based on B. Gorman’s recommendations.  

D. King also stated there was a required change under the section dealing with Executive 

Director evaluations. She said the Executive Director Performance Evaluation Policy 

prescribes the types of tools used to objectively measure the director’s performance. She 

recommended a grammatical change to the Bylaws to bring them in alignment with the 

policy. The change was made for full board consideration.  

1. Approve Revisions to the Bylaws         
                                              
Personnel & Policies Committee Recommendation:  The STLS Board of Trustees approves 
the revisions to the Bylaws as presented at the May 17, 2022 board meeting considering 
any agreed upon revisions. 
 
Motion by R. Ahola; seconded by B. Hubbell. All three committee members voted in favor 
of moving the policy out of committee for full board consideration.  
 
 
 
 

Doc. #22-70



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Library Bill of Rights and Freedom to Read Policy 
 
Committee members reviewed a list of policies needing revision based on the last time 

they had been revised or approved by the full board. D. King asked B. Hildreth if there 

were specific policies that were timely. B. Hildreth indicated the Library Bill of Rights and 

Freedom to Read Policy had not been reviewed since 2017. The committee agreed to 

review both policies before the July meeting.  

Personnel 

Vacant Delivery Driver Positions 

B. Hildreth informed the committee that interviews had taken place for vacant Delivery 

Driver positions. One position had been filled by an internal candidate, and the other two 

positions were filled by external candidates. Applications from other candidates will be 

retained for 2-years per STLS policy. He said he would recommended to the full board all 

three drivers be formally appointed at July’s meeting.  

Executive Director Performance Evaluation 

R. Ahola made a motion to go into Executive Session at 12:22 pm to discuss the Executive 

Director’s annual performance evaluation. B. Hubbell seconded the motion.  

R. Ahola made a motion to come out of Executive Session at 12:33 pm. B. Hubbell 

seconded the motion.  

Meeting adjourned at 12:34 pm.  

Minutes respectfully submitted by: Brian M. Hildreth  



Page 1 of 1 
 

Finance & Facilities Committee 

Meeting Minutes 
June 13, 2022  at 3:15 pm 
Hosted via GoToMeeting 

Present:  Betsy Gorman (Chair), Sisi Barr, Pat Finnerty, Louise Richardson and Brian Hildreth                                                      

Meeting was called to order at 3:20 pm. 

Review of Financial Statements - Brian reviewed May’s financial statements with the committee.  

Treasurer’s Report – Brian stated our total cash on hand is $1.5 million as compared to $1.8 million this 
time last year.  Although slightly less than last year, this total amount takes into account the recent 
payments made for construction expenses. With that in mind we are in good shape financially.  

Financial Clerk’s Report – Brian stated we have received 90% of E-Rate funding, line item 4721. These 
funds have been disbursed in line item 5409 – STLS Telephone/Internet to Synergy for the installation of 
external Wi-Fi access points for all member libraries. 

Profit - Loss Vs Actual Statement – Brian stated we are on budget for salaries however fuel costs are over 
budget which may require a budget revision in the near future.   

Deposit Summary and Expenditures Report – will be included in board packet. 

2021 Annual Update Document to the New York State Comptroller’s Office – committee is currently 
reviewing the document and will plan to present it at July Board meeting for approval. 

Initial External Audit Update – Auditors on site last week.  Audit went well.  Our adjustments are under 
$10,000 this year which is good news.  Preliminary findings will be presented in July and final 
presentation in September to the Board.    

Facilities Update – 

STLS Office Renovation Project:    Brian shared the STLS has paid out approximately $771,000.00 so far 
for the construction project.  The budget amount for the project is $950,000.00.   Work is progressing 
however the project completion date has been moved to the end of July.           

Louise moved to adjourn the meeting at 4:00 pm, Pat seconded and all approved.                                  

Respectfully submitted: Sisi Barr for Betsy Gorman, Treasurer 

Next Meeting is Monday, July 11th at 3:15pm. 

 

Doc. #22-71



Doc. #22-72









































Foundation for Southern Tier Libraries 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
May 12, 2022 
Southeast Steuben County Library and via Go to Meeting 
 
MEETING MINUTES 
 
Present: Sherry Collins, President; Paul Webster, Treasurer; Louise Richardson, Secretary; Denise King; Dale Wexell 
 
Excused: Phil Uncapher; Ristina Wigg, Vice President; Brian Hildreth, Southern Tier Library System Executive Director 
 
Guest: Bonnie Taggart 
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:38 pm. 
 
The minutes of the April 14, 2022 meeting were approved. 
 
The financial reports were reviewed and approved. Sherry noted that our bank balance after the grant checks were 
written is about $13,0000. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Online Auction 
Bonnie Weber suggested we have a letter and form to use in recruiting sponsors and securing auction items. Sherry 
will bring brochures to the next meeting which can be used in making asks as well, Denise King suggested that the 
minimum sponsorship level be $100. 
 
Dale Wexell volunteered to manage the auction website. He suggested that each board member secure eight 
auction items and noted that personal asks are most effective. Items should be valued at least $75. Lower value 
items can be packaged together to create a coordinated item of great value.  
 
Because we don’t want more than one board member approaching prospective donors, asks should be cleared with 
Dale prior to being made. We want high quality items. Services and meals are particularly popular.  
 
It was noted that we need more publicity this year in order to attract a larger pool of bidders. Louise Richardson will 
share information on social media and can prepare a marketing email for the event. Denise offered to prepare press 
releases and follow up with various media. 
 
The auction will be live from September 11 through September 24.  
 
Dale suggested our fundraising goal for the auction be $15,000. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:14 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Louise Richardson 
Secretary 

Doc. #22-73



Doc. #22-74











Doc. #22-75











 

1 
 

SOUTHERN TIER LIBRARY SYSTEM 
BY-LAWS 

 
ARTICLE I 

Name 
 

This organization shall be known as the Southern Tier Library System. 
 

ARTICLE II 
Purpose 

 
The purpose of the Southern Tier Library System shall be to expand and improve public 
library service in the counties of Allegany, Chemung, Schuyler, Steuben and Yates in 
the State of New York. 

 
ARTICLE III 

Membership 
 

Section 1. 
 
The Membership of the Southern Tier Library System (henceforth referred to as the 
System) shall be open to all libraries chartered by the New York State Board of Regents 
within the five-county area served by the system. 
 
Section 2. 
 
An Annual Membership Meeting of the System shall be held each year, preferably in 
October.  The Executive Director of the System shall be responsible for notifying the 
member libraries of the time and place of the Annual Membership Meeting. Each 
member library shall be represented at the Annual Membership Meeting by an 
individual selected by the Board of Trustees of that library. That individual shall cast 
one vote in all actions taken at the Annual Membership Meeting. 
 
Section 3. 
 
An agenda for the Annual Meeting shall be sent forwarded to each member library at 
least thirty days in advance of the Annual Meeting. Agenda shall be addressed to the 
member library’s Board President and Director.   A minimum of three items shall be 
placed on the Annual Meeting agenda  (1) Election of Trustees, as needed, to the 
Board of Trustees of the System -- this election shall be made by the representatives of 
the member libraries present at the meeting;  (2) A brief report by the Executive 
Director of the System on the performance of the System during the previous 12 
months and plans for the year ahead;  (3) a report by the Executive Director regarding 
the audited finances of the System for the previous financial year.  

Doc. #22-76



 

2 
 

ARTICLE IV 
Board of Trustees 

 
Section 1. 
.    
The System shall be governed by a Board of Trustees consisting of fifteen members.  
Each member of the Board of Trustees shall reside within the county they he/she will 
represent on the Board.  Ten of the Board positions shall be distributed equally among 
between the five counties comprising the System. In recognition of the population 
differences between the five counties, the remaining Board positions shall be assigned 
as follows:  Allegany County, one additional Trustee; Chemung County, two additional 
Trustees; and Steuben County, two additional Trustees. At least two, but not more 
than two, of the four Steuben County Trustees shall reside in the Southeast Steuben 
County Library service area. All Trustees shall be nominated by the member libraries in 
the counties they represent. Current employees of the System and current employees 
of member libraries are not eligible to serve shall be disqualified from serving as 
Trustees of the System. 
 
Section 3. Section 2. 
 
When a vacancy occurs on the Board of Trustees, whether through the normal 
completion of a Trustee’s authorized period of service, or the departure before the 
completion of an authorized period of service, the Public Relations Committee shall, in 
a timely fashion, actively canvass the library community in each county where wherein 
the vacancy exists to identify and nominate one or more candidates.  In the case 
where the term was completed by a Trustee fulfilling the authorized period of service, 
the candidate or candidates shall stand for election at the next Annual Membership 
Meeting.  In the case of a premature ending of a term, the candidate or candidates 
shall be presented to the current Board of Trustees for consideration for appointment 
as a Trustee, as noted in Article IV, Section 5. 
 
Section 2. Section 3. 
 
A term of office of a Trustee shall be five calendar years, beginning on January 1. 
Terms of Trustees shall be staggered so that three expire each year. A Trustee may not 
be elected to more than two consecutive full five-year terms.  Following such service a 
Trustee may again be appointed or selected after an interim of at least one year. 
 
Section 4. 
 
The System President of the Board of Trustees shall inform, in writing or by electronic 
mail, all Member Library Trustee and Reading Center Board Presidents of the System 
of the nominating process described in this section and encourage them to 
recommend potential candidates to the Public Relations Committee.  At the same 



 

3 
 

time, the Member Library and Reading Center Directors shall also be informed by a 
copy of the communication from the System President of the Board of Trustees.  The 
communications shall make clear that, where a System Trustee or Trustees have 
indicated a willingness to serve an additional five-year term, this in no way precludes 
the nomination of other candidates for election to the position.  
 
Additional candidates may be nominated from the floor at the Annual Membership 
Meeting.  These nominations shall be made solely by representatives from libraries in 
the same county as that of the Trustee position to be filled. 
 
Section 5. 
 
In the event of a vacancy on the board occurring during an unexpired term, a successor 
Trustee shall be elected by the remaining Trustees to serve from the day of election 
until the next Annual Meeting.  Candidates for this Trustee position shall be nominated 
by the same process as stated in Section 4 of this Article. In the event that, after 
diligent effort by the Public Relations Committee, no candidate for an expired term is 
available for election at the Annual Meeting, the Public Relations Committee shall 
continue their efforts to identify a candidate for the open position.  Such a candidate 
will be elected by the remaining Trustees to serve from the day of election until the 
next Annual Meeting. 
 
Section 6. 
 
In accordance with New York State Education Law, Section 226(4), “If any trustee shall 
fail to attend three consecutive meetings without excuse accepted as satisfactory by 
the trustees, they he shall be deemed to have resigned…”   The vacancy shall be filled 
in accordance with the provisions in Article IV, Section 5 of the System by-laws.  
Therefore, each Trustee shall notify either the Board President or the Executive 
Director in advance if unable to attend a Board meeting. 
 
The Board of Trustees may remove a Trustee for misconduct, incapacity, neglect of 
duty, or refusal or failure to carry into effect the System’s purpose as defined in the 
mission statement.  In the event that information is brought forward that a Trustee is 
engaged in behavior(s) that suggest that the Trustee should be removed from the 
Board, the Trustee may be subject to a removal hearing conducted by the Board in a 
special meeting called for that purpose upon at least ten (10) days written notice 
specifying the time and place of such hearing and a description of the allegations. 
 
The President of the Board, if not the accused, or the Vice President if the President is 
the accused, shall preside over such meeting as they he would over any other Board 
meeting.  The presiding officer will appoint a Board Trustee to present the substance 
of the allegations and the proof thereof and the accused Trustee will be permitted a 
full and fair opportunity to respond. 



 

4 
 

The hearing will take place in Executive Session which is not a hearing on the record, 
nor is it open to the public. Each Trustee shall have one vote, except for the accused.  
If the number of Trustees present at this Executive Session who vote in favor of 
removal constitutes a two-thirds majority vote of the full fifteen-member Board of 
Trustees then the motion shall be carried.  For the purpose of this hearing, including 
the subsequent open meeting as noted below, the President or the presiding officer 
shall have a vote.  Immediately following the Executive Session, if there is a 
determination that the accused Trustee is subject to removal, a resolution in open 
meeting shall be moved to a vote for the accused Trustee to be removed from the 
Board.  The accused Trustee shall not be permitted to vote in the open meeting.  This 
resolution shall require a two-thirds majority vote of the full fifteen-member Board of 
Trustees to become effective. 

 
         As directed by New York State Public Education Law, Section 226, the Executive 

Committee may not make removals from office. 
 
Section 7. 
 
Every Trustee, Officer, Executive Director and staff member of the System shall be 
indemnified by the System to the fullest extent provided by New York State law for 
claims arising out of the employee’s duties for the System.  The foregoing right of 
indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other right to which such person may be 
entitled. 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
Officers 

 
Section 1. 
 
The Officers of the System and its Board of Trustees shall be President, Vice-President, 
Secretary and Treasurer.  They shall be elected annually at the January meeting of the 
System Board, as stated in Section 3 of this Article.  All Officers shall be members of 
the Board of Trustees; refer to , except for the Treasurer, as stated in Section 2D of this 
Article for Treasurer duties. 
 
Section 2. 
 
A.  The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board and also at the Annual 
Membership Meeting; shall appoint members of all committees; shall be ex-officio 
member of all committees; shall authorize calls for Special Board Meetings and 
Emergency Board Meetings; shall sign official documents; shall serve as liaison to STLS 
Directors’ Advisory Council; and shall perform all other duties of a presiding officer. 
 



 

5 
 

B.  The Vice-President shall perform all the duties of the President in case of the 
absence or disability of the President; shall act as Parliamentarian for the 
interpretation of Robert’s Rules of Order, if required; and shall be given first 
consideration for chairperson of any ad hoc committees that may be appointed by the 
President. 

 
C.  The Secretary shall ensure that the minutes of all Board meetings are kept and 
recorded. 

 
D.  The Treasurer, who may be a non-Board member duly appointed by the Board, 
shall have charge of the funds of the System; shall have oversight of all monies 
received and disbursed, and of all financial records; shall have oversight of all duly 
appointed signatories and the signing of all checks; shall make a report of the status of 
the funds of the System at each regular meeting of the Board; and shall be covered by 
a commercial fidelity bond. 
 

E. The Past President or Elected Trustee, shall serve as the fifth member of the 
Officers of the Board, or Executive Committee.  

 
F.  In addition to the foregoing duties, each Officer shall have such additional 
powers or duties as conferred by the Board. 
 

Section 3. 
 
The term of office of all elected Officers shall be one calendar year.  No Officer, except 
for the Secretary and the Treasurer, shall serve for more than three consecutive full 
year terms. 
 
Section 4. 
 
Any Officer may be removed from office by a two-thirds majority vote of the full Board 
of Trustees. 
 
Section 5. 
Should an office become vacant prior to its expiration, the Board at the first regular 
meeting held after such vacancy occurs, shall select one of the members of the Board 
to fill the unexpired term. 
 
STOP 
 

ARTICLE VI 
Committees 



 

6 
 

 
Section 1. 
 
After the Annual Organizational Meeting in January, the incoming President of the 
Board of Trustees shall promptly appoint the Chairs and members of the Standing 
Board Committees.  Each Committee Chair shall be responsible for reporting results of 
committee meetings for distribution to the Trustees at the time of notification of 
Board meetings. 
 
A. The Executive Committee shall consist of the President, Vice-President, 
Secretary, and Treasurer, as well as the immediate Past-President, if that person is a 
current member of the Board, or, if not, another Trustee elected by the Board.  The 
responsibilities of this Committee are: 

1.   To create and set the agenda for all regular Board meetings; 
2.    To make decisions required before the next regular Board meeting and to advise   
the Executive Director on crucial issues between regularly scheduled Board 
meetings, or when there is not a quorum at a regular board meeting; 
3.     To plan and implement the orientation of newly appointed/elected Board 
members on the workings of the Board of Trustees and the System. 
 

B. The Finance and Facilities Committee shall consist of five members of the 
Board appointed by the President.  The responsibilities of this committee are:          

1.  To review develop annual budgets, budget amendments, financial plans, 
borrowing 

arrangements and any other financial matters; 
2.  To receive and investigate possible financial concerns under the STLS 
Whistleblower and Ethical Conduct Policy; 
3. To review, oversee and make recommendations concerning matters affecting the 
facility, property, equipment and vehicles of STLS. 

 
C.  The Personnel and Policies Committee shall consist of five members of the 
Board appointed by the President.  The responsibilities of this committee are: 

1.  To review, oversee and make recommendations concerning matters of 
personnel;  
2. To develop and review written policies to ensure the effective operation of the  
System, as required by NYS Commissioner’s Regulation 90.2 for part of the minimum 
standards set by the Board of Regents; 
3. To oversee the Executive Director’s Annual Performance Evaluation as 
established by the Board. 

 
D.  The Public Relations Committee shall consist of five members of the Board of 
Trustees appointed by the President.  The responsibilities of this committee are: 

1. To oversee awarding of System grants; 



 

7 
 

2. To oversee such activities as System awards, and press releases of System 
activities, planning the Annual Meeting, etc.; 
3. To oversee the process of nominating candidates for election to the Board of 
Trustees; 
4. To advocate on behalf of the System. 

 
 
Section 2. 
 
The President may appoint Board members to ad hoc committees necessary to deal 
with temporary issues or projects as established by the Board. 
 
Section 3. 
 
All committee appointments shall continue until new appointments are made by the 
newly elected President of the Board as required in Article VI, Section 1. 
 
Section 4. 
 
All committee meetings except for the Executive Committee will have a quorum of a 
majority of enrolled members.  The quorum for the Executive Committee is three (3). 
 
Section 5. 
   
All committee meetings are subject to the Open Meetings law.   
 

ARTICLE VII 
The Executive Director 

 
Section 1.   
 
The Executive Director of the Southern Tier Library System shall be its chief 
administrative and financial officer, and shall possess at least the minimum 
qualifications required by New York State Education Law.  The Executive Director shall 
be hired and appointed by a two-thirds majority of the full Board of Trustees, and shall 
perform their his duties according to a written job description and/or contract with the 
Board of Trustees.  Removal of the Executive Director shall be pursuant to the terms of 
the contract, upon a two-thirds majority vote of the full Board. 
 
Section 2. 
  
The Executive Director shall supervise the System staff and be responsible for the 
hiring, termination, direction, training and evaluation of personnel, their job 



 

8 
 

classifications and job descriptions. with the methods involved. These shall be 
approved by the Board. 
 
Section 3. 
 
The Executive Director shall administer the System in accordance with the policies 
adopted by the Board and shall efficiently serve the member libraries within the 
budgeted appropriations.  The Executive Director shall be responsible for the 
operation and maintenance of the System’s headquarters, facility and equipment. 
 
Section 4. 
 
The Executive Director shall attend all Board meetings and may take part in 
deliberations but shall have no vote.  The Executive Director shall furnish such 
information and reports as may be requested by the Board, assist in the development 
of the annual budget, make recommendations, and offer professional advice. 
 
Section 5. 
 
At each Annual Membership Meeting the Executive Director shall present a brief 
report on; (1) the condition and progress of the System concerning established goals 
and objectives during the current year, (2) recommendations for the coming year and 
(3) a report on the financial condition of the System as stated in Article III, Section 3. 
 
Section 6. 
 
The Executive Director shall be evaluated annually in writing by the Board.  This 
evaluation of the Executive Director’s performance shall be based on (1) performance 
against objectives jointly established by the Executive Director and the Board, and (2) a 
review by the Board of input from the Trustees of STLS and/or Directors of the 
member libraries. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
Board Meetings 

 
 

Section 1.   Meeting Procedure   
   
A.  Board meetings shall be held at least ten (10) times each calendar year, as 
called by the President of the Board upon at least a seven day notice to all Board 
members.  Special meetings may be called as noted in Section 3 of this Article. 
 
B. At all Board meetings a quorum shall consist of eight members of the Board.  



 

9 
 

 
C. Unless stated otherwise in these By-Laws, motions before the Board shall be 
approved by a simple majority of those Trustees present. 

 
D.  The latest edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern the Board in matters 
of parliamentary procedure. 
 

E.  Public notice of the time and place of all scheduled Board meetings shall be 
given to the news media at the beginning of the System’s fiscal year, and shall be 
conspicuously posted in a public space of the System’s offices one or more designated 
public venues along with the System’s website.  

 
F.   All Board meetings are subject to the Open Meetings Law.   Board members 
may participate in meetings remotely, but must follow current Open Meetings Law in 
order to be eligible to vote. by video conference, Skype and other forms of video 
communication. 

 
Section 2. 
 
A.  Prior to each meeting, all members of the Board shall be sent a copy of the 
agenda, a copy of the minutes of the preceding meeting,  a copy of the Treasurer’s 
report and a copy of the committee reports. 
      
B.   An Executive session may be called at any time during a regular Board meeting by 
any Trustee by means of a motion to go into closed or Executive session.  As directed 
by New York State Public Officers Law, Section 105, (1) the motion must identify the 
“general area or areas of the subject or subjects to be considered”,  (2) the subjects to 
be discussed must be limited to the eight items specified in the law, and (3) the motion 
must be adopted by majority vote of the full Board.  As required by Section 105, 
attendance at an Executive session shall be permitted to all Trustees and to any other 
persons approved by the Board. 

 
Section 3. 
 
A.      A Special meeting is a separate Board meeting held at a time different from that 
of any regular Board meeting.  It is convened only to consider one or more items of 
business specified in the call for the meeting.  Only business mentioned in the call for 
the meeting may be transacted. 

 
B. Such Special meetings shall be called at the direction of the President of the 
Board or at the written request of four (4) Board members to the President. 
 



 

10 
 

C. Advance notice and an agenda should be given to the Trustees at least five 
business days before the day the Special meeting is to be held and should specify the 
time and place of the meeting. 
 

 D. If, in a Special meeting, it becomes necessary to take an emergency action for 
which no notice was given, that action must be ratified at the next regular Board 
meeting or at another Special meeting called for that purpose in order to be legal. 

 
 

 
 

Amendment of the By-Laws 
 
1.  Amendment of these By-Laws shall be a two-step process requiring 

approval both by the Board of Trustees and subsequently by the member 
libraries at an Annual Membership Meeting. 

 
2.  Any member of the Board may initiate the amendment process as follows 

(1) By presenting a proposed amendment at any Board meeting with a 
vote to be taken at the next Board meeting, or (2) By presenting a 
proposed amendment in writing at least five days prior to a meeting, a 
vote to be taken at that meeting.  In either case, this first step in the 
adoption of an amendment requires a two-thirds majority vote of the 
Trustees present, except that, as required by New York State Education 
Law, Section 226, “no rule by which more than a majority vote shall be 
required for any specified action by the trustees shall be amended, 
suspended, or repealed by a smaller vote that that required for action 
thereunder.” 

 
3.  If the proposed amendment or amendments are approved by the Board, 

they shall be presented to the member libraries at the next regularly 
scheduled Annual Membership Meeting.  Each amendment shall come into 
effect if it receives a simple majority plurality of votes from the duly 
appointed representatives of the member libraries present at the Annual 
Membership Meeting.   However, the Board may act in accordance with 
the Board approved amendment(s) between the first and second step of 
the amendment process.  In the event that the Board approved 
amendment(s) is not ratified by the membership at the Annual Meeting, 
such amendment(s) shall be revoked until further approved revision. 

 

 
 



 

11 
 

These By-Laws supersede those approved September 23, 1958, revised by vote 
November 13, 1989, revised by vote October 22, 1991, revised by vote February 15, 
1995, revised by vote May 18, 1999, revised by vote December 18, 2001, revised by 
vote March 22, 2005, revised by vote May 16, 2006, revised by vote June 20, 2006, 
revised by vote October 16, 2007, revised by vote October 21, 2008, revised by vote 

October 25, 2011, revised by vote October 23, 2012, revised by vote October 23, 2012, 
revised by vote October 22, 2013, revised by vote October 7, 2014,  

revised by vote October 6, 2015, revised MM/DD/2022.  
 
 

Southern Tier Library System – Board of Trustees Committee Structure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees 

Allegany County - 3 Representatives 

Chemung County - 4 Representatives 

Schuyler County - 2 Representatives 

Steuben County - 4 Representatives 

Yates County - 2 Representatives  

Finance & Facilities 

Committee 

4 – 5 Committee Members 

Appointed by the President 

following the at Annual 

Organizational Meeting 

Personnel & Policies 

Committee 

4 – 5 Committee Members 

Appointed by the President 

following the at Annual 

Organizational Meeting 

Executive Committee 

President  

Vice President 

Treasurer 

Secretary  

Past President or Elected Trustee 

Public Relations  

Committee 

4 – 5 Committee Members 

Appointed by the President 

following the at Annual 

Organizational Meeting 

 

Responsibilities:  

Sets agenda for monthly board 

meetings, and empowered to 

make time-sensitive decisions 

on behalf of the Board of 

Trustees. Responsible for new 

Board Member orientation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Responsibilities:  

Reviews Develops annual 

budget, budget amendments, 

borrowing arrangements, and 

investigates possible financial 

concerns under the STLS 

Whistleblower and Ethical 

Behavior Policy. Reviews and 

recommends financial auditor, 

insurance coverages and 

official STLS depository. 

Evaluates, documents and 

reports issues affecting the 

facility, property, equipment 

and vehicles. 

Address: Elements 1, 10, 11 & 

12 of STLS Plan of Service. 

 

Responsibilities:  

Reviews, oversees and makes 

recommendations concerning 

matters of personnel, which 

include contract negotiations 

and Executive Director’s 

performance evaluations. 

Develops, reviews or revises 

policies and related documents 

for approval by the STLS Board 

of Trustees.  

 

 

 

 

Addresses: Elements 3, 5, 6, 11 

& 12 

of STLS Plan of Service. 

 

Responsibilities:  

Advocates for library funding  

with local, state, and federal 

officials. Oversees the 

awarding of System grants. 

Works with Executive Director 

to survey System services. 

Solicits nominations for System 

awards, and presents awards 

at Annual Meeting. 

Collaborates with System staff 

to develop successful internal 

and external public relations. 

Oversees the nomination & 

elections of Board of Trustees. 

Addresses: Element 2, 5, 7, 8, 

9, 10 & 11 of STLS Plan of 

Service. 

 



 

12 
 

 
 

    

Purpose: To create 

awareness of System 

services to external and 

internal audiences through 

multiple outlets.  

Purpose: To maximize 

System revenues, align 

expenses with Plan of 

Service, and maintain and 

enhance System assets.  

 

Purpose: To develop a work 

environment that supports 

innovative personnel, and 

creates policy to align with 

the System’s mission.  

 

Purpose: To organize the 

results of Committee work, 

and make certain Trustee 

meetings address key issues, 

and remain effective. 



Doc. #22-77



















 1 

GENERAL RESOLUTION 

 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

 

PARTICIPATING IN A COOPERATIVE BID COORDINATED BY 

 

THE BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES OF 

 

ONTARIO, SENECA, WAYNE AND YATES COUNTIES 

 

FOR 

 

Cooperative Electricity Supply Bid WFL 2023-12 

 

 WHEREAS, The (County) (Town) (Village) of _________________________________ of New 

York State desires to participate in a Cooperative Bidding Program conducted by The Board of Cooperative 

Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties from year to year or, until this 

Resolution is rescinded, for the purchase for  supply of  electricity.  And… 

 

 WHEREAS, The (County) (Town) (Village) of _________________________________ of New 

York State is desirous of participating with The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, 

Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties in the joint bid of the commodities and/or services mentioned below as 

authorized by General Municipal Law, Section 119-o…  And… 

 

 WHEREAS, The (County) (Town) (Village) of _________________________________ of New 

York State has appointed The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and 

Yates Counties as representative to assume the responsibility for drafting of specifications, advertising for 

bids, accepting and opening bids, tabulating bids, reporting the results to the 

_______________________________ of New York State and making recommendations thereon… 

 

THEREFORE… 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, That The (County) (Town) (Village) of 

_____________________________________ of New York State and The Board of Cooperative 

Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties hereby accepts the appointment of 

The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties to represent 

it in all matters related above…  And… 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That The (County) (Town) (Village) of 

____________________________ of New York State authorizes the above-mentioned Board of 

Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties to represent it in all 

matters regarding the entering into contract for the purchase of the below-mentioned commodities and/or 

services…  And… 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That The (County) (Town) (Village) of 

____________________________ of New York State agrees to assume its equitable share of the costs 

incurred as a result of the cooperative bidding…  And… 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Doc. #22-78



 2 

 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That The ___________________________ on behalf of the 

(County) (Town) (Village) of ______________________________________ of New York State hereby is 

authorized to participate in cooperative bidding conducted by The Board of Cooperative Educational 

Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties for supply of  electricity and if requested to furnish 

The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties an 

estimated minimum number of units that will be purchased by The Board of Cooperative Educational 

Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties.  The Board of Cooperative Educational Services 

of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties is hereby authorized to award cooperative bids to the bidder 

deemed to be the lowest responsive and responsible meeting the bid specifications and otherwise 

complying with Article 5-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York relating to public bids 

and contracts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________   ____________________________________ 

  Date       Municipality Representative 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       (County) (Town)            (Village) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 6 
 
 

Monthly System Staff & Divisional Reports  

June 21, 2022 

 
 

 
Office of the Executive Director by Brian Hildreth, Executive Director  

Division of Library Sustainability 

The Executive Director spent the months of May/June engaged in the following activities: 

 

 May 17: Attended monthly STLS Board Meeting. Participated in New York Library Association’s Spring on 

the Hill event. Represented STLS, and presented on Library District Toolkit with Rebekkah Smith Aldrich 

as part of the event’s programs. Attended various continuing education workshops. Visited with the 

Belfast Public Library via Zoom to provide NYS Public Library Construction Aid consultation.  

 

 May 19: Participated in STLS Director’s Advisory Council DEI Committee meeting. Attended Public 

Library System Director’s Organization monthly meeting to discuss public library system matters. Met 

with planning team members of the Library Trustee Handbook Book Club to plan future events.  

 

 May 24 - 25: Participated STLS Director’s Advisory Council Bylaws Review Committee meeting. Finalized 

rough draft of proposed bylaw revisions, and prepared them to present to the full DAC. Attended the 

Director’s Advisory Council bi-monthly meeting. Presented on Digital Library Contributions with Erika 

Jenns, and discussed proposed changes to the group’s bylaws.    

 

 May 31 - June 3: Executive Director was on Vacation.   

 

 June 6 - 10: Worked with external financial auditors from Mengel, Metzger and Barr to conduct STLS’ 

annual audit. Met with Erika Jenns to prepare for upcoming Policy Development for Boards and 

Directors workshop. Attended Foundation for Southern Tier Libraries board meeting.    

 

 June 13:  Attended Director’s Advisory Council DEI – System Services Subcommittee meeting. Discussed 

STLS Collection Management Policy, and potential member training programs, which included an online 

learning event scheduled for October 2022. Participated in STLS Board of Trustee’s Finance & Facilities 

Committee meeting.      

 

 June 14 - 16:  Attended the Allegany County Director’s Association meeting at Wide Awake Club Library. 

Presented Policy Development for Boards and Directors Workshop for member libraries. Attended STLS 

Board of Trustees Personnel & Policies Committee meeting as well as Executive Committee meeting. 

Assisted with the Trustee Handbook Book Club focusing on PR and Advocacy. Participated in the New 

York State Library monthly meeting with public library system directors.  

 

Doc. #22-79



Page 2 of 6 
 
 

Youth Services & InterLibrary Loan 
by Lorie Brown, Professional Development Manager 

Division of Professional Development 

Lorie visited connected with four libraries during May to support members libraries in providing library services 
to their communities. She visited new director, Emily Smith at the Montour Falls Memorial Library. This general 
overview of STLS’ services to support youth services and out of system ILL services resulted in follow-up email 
messages with ideas and content for summer activities. And, a determination to meet again for specific training 
in the use of BARC. While Emily doesn’t anticipate using the service herself, she is interested in begin well-
informed on the process. Lorie also continued training libraries in the use of BARC for out of system ILL services. 
Staff at the Rushford Free Library and the 20th Century Club Library received training. A visit to the Dundee 
Library for a review of their local history corner to help determine its mission and future direction also occurred. 
Consultations with STLS colleagues, Brian Hildreth and Erika Jenns has helped to provide guidance to the library 
volunteers as they move forward with this project.  
 
May 2-8, 2022 was the first of two scheduled Children’s Book Week (sponsored by the Children’s Book Council 
and Every Child a Reader). Lorie encouraged member libraries to celebrate this national event in big and small 
ways—hanging an STLS-created poster in their windows; distributing bookmarks and activity sheets (provide by 
STLS); hosting a program; adding social media posts; celebrating the first annual Floyd Cooper Day. Participation 
was wide-spread and varied widely. In further efforts to encourage member library participation in events all 
across our system and our state, Lorie volunteered to assist in the presentation of an informative webinar on the 
Great Give Back. It has been a number of years since STLS participated in this event as a system. The Great Give 
Back will occur in October but will have an informative/refresher webinar in early June. Examples of our 
members efforts in this event from 2019 will be included in the webinar.  
 
This month also marked the return of Lyndsie Guy to STLS after her maternity leave. We welcome her back!!  

 
Coordinated Outreach 

by Keturah Cappadonia, Outreach Consultant 
Division of Professional Development and Outreach 

 
May was a fun and full month as the Spring weather spread through the Southern Tier and Western NY. 

Keturah continued to work on the SCRLC Telehealth for Everyone project by distributing the six circulating 

telehealth kits to participating STLS libraries. She was assisted by Lorie Brown, who delivered a kit to the Dundee 

Library. Keturah delivered kits to Bath, Watkins Glen, Elmira, Friendship, and Whitesville, and showed library 

directors and staff how they work. 

Keturah worked with Erika Jenns and Brian Hildreth on planning for participation in NYLA’s Spring on the Hill 

advocacy event in Albany. Keturah and Erika set up and attended meetings in Albany with Senator Tom O’Mara, 

Assemblywoman Marjorie Byrnes, and a representative from Senator George Borello’s office. Keturah and Erika 

also delivered thank you notes and advocacy information to the offices of Assemblymen Friend, Palmesano, and 

Giglio. While at the Spring on the Hill event, Keturah also networked with library system consultants from 

around NY State.  

Keturah attended the following meetings: NY State Public Library Systems Outreach Coordinators Meeting, 

CREW Climate Resilience Hubs informational meeting, STLS Training Team, STLS Division of Professional 



Page 3 of 6 
 
 

Development and Outreach department meeting, ALA Council meeting, and the DAC meeting in Wellsville. 

Keturah also attended the STLS workshop, “Strategic Planning for Boards and Directors,” led by Brian Hildreth. 

Keturah also sent out her monthly “Reaching Out” newsletter covering topics related to outreach and adult 

services.  

Working with input from Brian Hildreth and Lorie Brown, Keturah created a new DEI Micro-Grant program using 

state funding that will be offered in 2022 to STLS member libraries in conjunction with the annual COSAC 

Outreach Mini-Grant funding opportunities. Keturah sent out the Outreach Mini-Grant and DEI Micro-Grant 

announcements at the end of May and will work with members through the summer on submitting applications. 

Keturah continued to promote the STLS webinar series, “Actively Anti-Racist Services to Leisure Readers,” to 

members. The recordings of the first two webinars in the series have been viewed 41 times to date. The third 

and final session will be a live webinar in June.  

Keturah continued to update the STLS DEISJ LibGuide with resources for member libraries to use to assist in 

working with underserved populations. One section of the LibGuide, on Library Services for Dementia, was 

featured in an issue of the South Central Regional Library Council newsletter in May. Keturah also developed an 

Outreach Services LibGuide to share information about library outreach and grant funding opportunities and 

resources. These are available through the STLS website.  

Digital Librarianship & Public Relations 

by Erika Jenns, Engagement Consultant 

Division of Professional Development and Outreach 

During the month of May 2022, Erika Jenns met with a representative from the National Digital Inclusion 
Alliance to learn more about digital inclusion and the work libraries can do. She also attended various committee 
meetings, and presented at or hosted a few. And, she met with member libraries to work on their websites. 
 
Erika met with Vicky Yuki, the Senior Programs Manager from the National Digital Inclusion Alliance, to discuss 
digital inclusion efforts being made by libraries and other organizations in our region and state. They discussed 
possible paths forward for library involvement and potential partnerships. Throughout the month, Erika also 
attended various committee meetings, including the Public Library Association Digital Literacy Committee, the 
South Central Regional Library Council Advisory Committee on Information and Technology Services, and an 
article discussion with SCRLC about the article titled, “The Battle for the Soul of the Library.” She also attended 
the STLS Directors Advisory Council, the DAC DEI Committee meeting, and the DAC ad-hoc Digital Library 
Contributions Committee meeting. At the last two, Erika presented data on STLS digital collections use, along 
with potential platforms to consider adding as services for STLS cardholders. 
 
Additionally, she met with a new member library director - Emily Smith, at the Montour Falls Memorial Library. 
She also met with directors at the Friendship Free Library and Rushford Free Library to discuss updating their 
library websites. Erika hosted the Digital Library Advisory Group meeting in May, and she coordinated a training 
session with a representative from Brainfuse on how to use the new JobNow database with 20 participants. 
 
Other activities included creation of the digital updates & events digest newsletters, along with investigation of 
the Kanopy platform and individual library subscription pricing for Hoopla. Erika also coordinated corrections to 
FY2021 member library annual reports from the state Division of Library Development. She secured a 34% non-



Page 4 of 6 
 
 

profit discount for the Hootsuite social media management tool. While attending the NYLA Spring on the Hill 
event in Albany, Erika and Keturah Cappdonia met with Senator George Borrello, Assemblywoman Marjorie 
Byrnes, and Senator Tom O’Mara to discuss the great projects that STLS member libraries have been working on 
this year, and to thank legislators for securing funding for libraries. Erika & Keturah also delivered “thank you” 
packages to Assemblymen Friend, Palmesano, and Giglio. 

Program Support, Outreach Collections, & Delivery 
By Lyndsie Guy, Resource Consultant 

Division of Professional Development and Library Outreach 

 I returned from leave in May, and spent most the month catching up on all of the goings-on from while I was 
away! Much of the early part of the month was spent meeting with my colleagues and sorting through emails 
and messages, but I am now fully back in the swing of things. We found ourselves having to fill two delivery 
driver positions in mid-May; the latter half of the month was spent collecting resumes and arranging 
interviews.  Because we were a bit short-staffed, I also completed a delivery run (on 5/13) and a rotating 
collection run (on 5/26) this month. Speaking of rotating collections: the youth rotating collection moved in 
May. 

Throughout the month, I worked with the Steuben County Department of Health to identify how many Covid-19 
tests and masks each library in the county currently had, and I then connected libraries that had too few 
supplies with those that had too many. We received 900 additional Covid-19 tests, which I worked to distribute 
among membership. I also conducted a New Director Orientation with Emily Smith at Montour Falls on May 
27th. Last, but not least: I attended the Training Team meeting, Division of PD&LO meeting, and the Director’s 
Advisory Council meeting (this took place in Wellsville). 

Assistant Director – Head of Information Technology 
by Ken Behn 

Division of Information Technology 

In May, IT worked on 153 Help Desk requests for member libraries and performed monthly operating system 
patches on 4 ILS servers. Weekly meetings with IT department staff and the montly CCLD meeting were held. 
 
Meet with CPE and Teracai to develop a spec and get initial pricing for a new VoIP phone system. 
 
IT move STLS to and from various offices as construction moved around the building and removed the installed 
AV equipment from the conference room. We also rearranged equipment in the server room around the new 
flooring being installed. 

We worked with a patron having STARCat trouble with FireFox for the Alfred library and started testing the 
ability of patrons to edit some of their personal information in STARCat My Account at the request of the DAC. 
 
Individually these are some highlights of IT staff work: 
 
Pat Beeman  

• Worked with STN to reconnect the Canisteo/Andover fiber link (SR 52031) Week of 5/2. 
• Assisted Keturah with O365/On Microsoft Account reset (assisted Lyndsie the week prior) (SRs 52072 & 

52215) Week of 5/9. 



Page 5 of 6 
 
 

• Created accounts for new co-director in Addison (SR 52342) Week of 5/16. 
• Converted Jess Westlake's Help Desk account (SR 52386) Week of 5/23. 
• x528 calls, as always (multiple SRs) ALL OF THE WEEKS 
• Moved business office clients to the conference room then back to business office (no SR) Multiple 

Weeks. 

Tom Lawrence  
 

• Enjoyed a week of vacation. 
• Started preparing replacement laptops for STLS staff. 
• Performed disk cleaning on several STLS servers. 
• Worked on multiple SRs for Bath. 

Brianne Liddick  

• Software activation/repair (5/2) 
• Imaging and E-Rate information for BEAR (5/9) 
• Quotes/quote comparison for different types of licensing (5/16) 
• E-Rate: Cabling BEAR (5/23) 
• Imaging, recordkeeping, help desk service requests (5/31) 

Integrated Library System and Cataloging 
by Mandy Fleming, ILS Manager 

Division of Information Technology 
 

Here is our monthly report for May… 

E-rate 

I have continued working with Ken to train Brianne on the E-rate filing process, and working with E-rate Service 

Providers.  In May we submitted a BEAR for Synergy Global Solutions – the service provider that provided 

cabling to the libraries as part of the external WIFI project.  We received a total of $83,839.75 in E-rate 

reimbursements for this BEAR.   

General STLS 

I attended the hybrid DAC meeting in Wellsville in May – it was wonderful to see library directors in person 

again, and have the opportunity to chat with them before and after the official meeting! 

ILS 

I visited Montour Falls to provide New Director ILS Training to Emily – Jess was there too, which was very helpful 

and they both had lots of great WorkFlows questions.  I worked with Keturah, and staff at Elmira, to set up 

circulation parameters for the Telehealth kits our libraries received from the South Central Regional Library 

Council.   I prepared for and presented at the quarterly ILS Meeting.  In May I worked on creating reports of past 

assumed lost items, for libraries to use to determine whether or not to replace those items.  I will be running 



Page 6 of 6 
 
 

and emailing those reports in June.  The DAC Circulation Committee requested the reports and helped me to 

fine-tune the output, to make them as helpful as possible for libraries.    

In May Daniel provided Item Maintenance training remotely, to Denise in Hornell and Larissa provided Item 

Maintenance Training in Dundee.  After much back-and-forth with the libraries and the vendor, Daniel also 

finalized an order for new library cards (with new designs) for Hornell, Cuba, and Rushville. Larissa worked on a 

custom report for Brian and Erika that showed total physical circulation, physical audio circulation and physical 

DVD circulation, to assist in the upcoming decision making for Digital Collections spending.  Kylie has been 

working very hard on getting through the Help Desk backlog.  Kylie and Larissa also attended online training for 

SirsiDynix Data Control, a new product we have access to, which allows us to run queries and update data in 

bulk – something we were only able to do previously with cumbersome (and limited) WorkFlows reports or Ken 

running API commands on the Symphony server.   

Cataloging volume has remained high, and like last month we have also had holidays, staff vacations and 

SirsiDynix training.  Kylie, Daniel and Larissa have been able to get the turnaround time back down to an 

acceptable level – we are currently at 7 working days for unopened cataloging requests, down from 21 days at 

this point last month, which is a great indication of their hard work!   

 

 

 


